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REVIEW REPORT ON INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TO THE CHAIRMAN AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF JORDAN KUWAIT BANK
{PuBLiC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

introduction

We have reviewed the accompanying interim condensed consolidated statement of financial
position of Jordan Kuwait Bank as of 30 June 2018 and the related interim condensed
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, for the three months and six
months then ended and the interim condensed consolidated statements of changes in equity and
cash flows for the six months then ended. Management is responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these interim condensed consolidated financial statements in accordance with
International Accounting Standard (34) “interim financial reporting”. Our responsibility is to express
a conclusion on these interim condensed consolidated financial statements based on our review.

Scope of Review

We conducted our review in accordance with the International Standard on Review Engagements
(2410) "Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the
Entity”. A review of interim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons
responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review
procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that
we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly,
we do not express an audit opinion.

Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
accompanying interim condensed consolidated financial statements are not properly prepared, in
all material respects and in accordance with Internationa! Accounting Standard (34).

Other Matters

The bank financial year ends in 31 December of each year. The interim candensed consolidated

financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the listing instructions of Amman
Stock Exchange, Central Bank of Jordan, and for management purposes.

PricewaterhouseCoopers “Jordan™, Jabal Amman - jrd Circle, 14 Hazza’ Al Majali St., P.O. Box 5175, Amman 11183 - Jordan
T: +962 (6) 500 1300, F:+962 (6} 461 0880, unvw. pwe.com



JORDAN KUWAIT BANK

(A PuBLIC LIMITED SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As AT 30 JUNE 2018

JUNE 30,2018 DECEMBEH 31,
{REVIEWED AND 2017
Nota UNAUDITED) {AUDITED)
JD JD
ASSETS
Cash and balances at central banks 4 204,870,943 224,259,331
Balancas at banks and financial instiulions 5 291,617,738 317,656,834
Deposiis at banks and financial Institutions 6 17,704 6,246,210
Direct eradit facilities-net 7 1,536,754,165 1,562,2686,911
Financial assets al falr value through prafil or loss 8 - 66,673,669
Financial assets al falr value through comprehensive Income 9 115,391,650 29,240,711
Financial assels al amortized cost 10 337,039,040 395,100,921
Property and equipment - net 1 27,088,953 29,388,555
Intangible assels - net 3,782,416 5,085,610
Dafarred tax assets 26,027,287 11,299,456
Other assals 12 187,188,048 180,796,785
Assaels held for sales- net 35 105,613,480 4,162,033
TOTAL ASSETS 2,835,391,424 2.832,207,026
LIABIUTIES AND OWNERS' EQUITY
LIABILTIES
Banks and financial instilutlons deposits 262,418,937 306,217,195
Cuslomers depaosiis 13 1,777,982,394 1,808,308,934
Cash margins 135,579,810 96,179,698
Borrowed funds 16 83,577,644 80,137,973
Other provisions 14 11,434,299 10,921,129
Provision forincome tax 15 5,826,622 12,210,713
Defermred tax liabilities 3,527,330 3,791,258
Qther labilities 17 66,057,705 45,367,012
Liabilities directly related o assels held for sale 35 66,263,129 661,794
TOTAL LIABILUITIES 2.412,667,870 2,363,705,704
OwneRs' EquiTy
Equity — Bank Shareholders
Authorized and paid-in capilal 32 100,000,000 100,000,000
Siaiutory raserve 33 85,765,246 86,034,401
Voluntary reserve 33 160,466,574 160,466,574
Pro-cyclicality reserve 33 - 227,597
General banking risks resarve - 14,288,875
Financlzal assets valuation reserve - net of tax 18 5,475,635 8,135,330
Equity directly related to assais held for sale 3 (17,829) {17,829)
Relained aamings 19 52,547,041 99,275,774
Income for the pariod 18,486,887 -
ToTAL OWNERS' EQUITY 422,723,554 468,411,322
TOTAL LIASILITIES AND OWNERS' EQUITY 2,835,391,424 2,832,207.026

Chalrman of Board of Diractors

Ganeral Manager

The accompanying notes from 1 1o 35 constitute an integral part of these condensad
consolldsted Interim financial statements and should be read in conjunction with them and
with the accompanying reviaw report.



JORDAN KUWAIT BANK

(A PuBLiC LIMITED SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
FoR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

FOR THWE THREE MonTHS ENDED JUNE 30

FoR tHE Six MonTHS EHOED JUNE 30

2m7 2017
NOTE 28 {HEPAESEMNTED) 2018 (REPRESENTED)
Jn JD JD0 JD
(PEVIEWED [REVIEWED (REVIEWED {REVIEWED
UMAUDITED) LHAUDITED} URIALKHTED) UNALDITED)

intores! lncoms 20 15736 820 24,775,218 71.329,6N 656,649,964
Les3: Intorest axpenso 21 13,239,994 10,849,825 2842282 19,141,911
Nel interast Income 21,996,828 24,125,380 44,508,529 47,507,553
Nal commission incoms 2,587,478 1,884,153 5.204,600 4,440.222
Net I snd C issian k 24,584,302 26,109,533 50,141,129 51,947,778
Foreign curmency income 1,078,140 871,182 2,527,504 1,905,145
Gain from linanciat agsets at fair valus through

proiit or loss 24 - a52.082 - 1.514,318
Cash dividends from financla) 853613 a1 falr value

through comprahansive income 9 260,210 272,116 1,300,475 853,258
Othar Incoma 22 3,729,318 2,816.208 7.357.480 5,383,148
Grosa Incoma 29.852,031 J0.421,101 61,326.688 61,583,840
Employeas axpenses 8,829,751 7,219,042 13285773 13,099,858
Depracialion and amortization 1,379,818 1,414,429 3,123,004 2,646,253
Provisign lor impairment on direct credd [aciiiies 7 - 6,082,215 . 8,057,106
Provislon for axpecied credit lossas on direct crodit

faciitles 1.185.955 - 1,274,553 .
{Reversal rom) Provision for expacied craot losses

on non-direct cadi (aclities (7,082,542) - {7.082,542) .
{Revarsal Irom) Provision for axpectad cradit losses

on invesiments {53,764) - 4,285 .
{Revarsal fram) Provision lar expociod croot lesses

on deposis at banks and financial insitutions {42,067} - {33,968) -
Othet provisions 692,512 258,593 1,564,583 BES,714
Other axpeniey 23 14,897,985 7,117,991 22403454 13,850,887
Total Ezpenses 17,806.846 22.072.670 34,549,202 36.722.856
incom lor tho Perod bolore Income tax expense 11,645,185 BAs8.431 28,777,488 22,855,784
Lazs: fncoma lax axpeise 15 (2,988.555) (1,988,385} {7.673.385} (6.709.921)
Income tor tha Parled from contintidng oparasons 8,858,830 6,360,088 10,104,101 18,149,883
Ne loss irom discontinued cperaticns 35 (579.454) (478.282) 817.214) 11.613.280)
Incoms for the patod 8.2377.178 5.881,784 18,486,887 14,536.583
Pertains to:
Earnings per share for the pariod Attributsbis to

ths bank’'s sharaholdarg - bagic and dliuted ¢ 0.083 a.088 0.185 0.14%
Eamings par share from continuaus opemtions

for tha pariod Attributatile to the bank's

shamhclders - basic and dlluted 25 0.089 0.084 0.191 181
Earnings pers share (loxs) kom non-cantnuous

oparationa far tha petiod Attributabls- basic

and diluted 28 {0.008) {3.005) {0.006) {6,018

Chairman of Board of Direclors Ganeral Manager

The accompanying notes from 1 to 35 constitute an Integral parl of these condensed
consolidated Interim financlal statements and should ba read with In conjunction them and

with the accompanying review report.
3



JORDAN KUWAIT BANK
{A PUBLIC LIMITED SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FoR THE PER}OD ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

FoR THE THREE MONTHS EXDED JUNE 30 FOH tHE S1x MONTHS EHOED JUNE 30
207 2017
NovE 2018 {RESTATED) 2018 [RESTATED)
Jo Jo JO Jo
(REVIEWED [REVIEWED {REVIEWED (PEVIEWED
UHAUDITED) UMALDITED } UMAUDITED) UNALDITED)
Incamae tor the Pariod 8277178 5881784 18,468 887 14,535,583
(iher Comprshansiva Incoma llams:
[tams not sutrsequently ianslerable 1o condensed
Intarim consoldated statement of income
Nat change in Fnancial assats at tal7 vakie
vakration aserve - nal of tax {2.622.477) 1.464,576 (2.467.618) 738,206
Tats! Comprehensiva Incoina for tha Padod S 654 699 7,346,380 18,019,089 15,224,789

The accompanying notes from 1 o 35 constitule an integral part of thase condensed
consolidated Interim financial sialements and should be read in conjunction with them and
with the accompanying review report
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JORDAN KUWAIT BANK
(A PuBLIC LIMITED SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

FOR THE Stx MoNTHS ENDED 30 Jure
NOTE 2018 2017
Jo Jo
{REVIEWED UNAUDITED) [REVIEWED) UNAUDITED)

Cash Fiowa from Operating Activilies:
Income For The Period Belom incoms Tax 28,160,272 21,246,503
Adjustmants:
Depradiation and amortization 3,122,004 2,846,253
Provision ior impaismant on direct cracti laciktios 7 . 8,057,108
Provision lor ezpecied creci leasas on direct credit (actias 1,274,553 -
[Revarsal from) Provision for arpacied cradi losses on nondinett cradt lackitles {7.082,542) -
Pruvision for impakmaent on investments 4,265 -
{Ravarzal lrorm) Provision foz expecied credi losses on dapests al banks and

Enanclalinstitutions (33,968} -
MNet Inlerast incoms 1253121 12,554,717
Provision for stalf indamnity 1,384,662 741,239
Provisian for lowsuits againat tha benk and conlingen clakms 180,000 180,000
Provision for salzed assets 1,242,548 2.450,308
{Gain) trom gala o financial assels B lak value Swough statemen] of income o4 - {191,459}
{Gain) from vakialion of fnancial assets &) falr valus trugh sistemaent of ncomg 24 - 1,095,241}
etlect of exchange rate fucivations on cash and cash squivalents 6.526 (4.929)
Total 28,780,550 46.824.477
Changes in Axastz And Linblitlos:
Decrease kn doposits ot banks and financlat institutions 8,138,148 8,178,493
{increase) in direct creck laciites {22,195,540) 40,011,942
[increass) In linanclal assals ai takr value through staleman of Incoms - (t.834,125)
[Incroasa) In other azsets {29.7783,194) {29.442,532)
{Decreass) In banka and financial insteutions daposils due sher the menhs {34,774,818) 20.420.813
{Decraasa) In cusiomers depcsits {30,328,540) 150.827,455)
Increasa In cash marging 39,400,114 2,024,899
{Decreasn) In other proviskans (1,051,493) (568,688)
Increasa in ather liahiities 24,288,765 11.447.265
Net Changa (n Assets Andg Liabllities (47.802 558} (72 800.672)
Net Cash Flows {Used In} / Gensraled From Operating Activities Bafore

Incams Tax {9.012,008) 25,779,195}
Income tax paid 15 {11.518.934) {13.782.329)
Net Cosh Rows (Used In) / Generated From Operating Activiies {20531 942) (39.561,524)
Cash Flows From Invasting Activitiaa:
Decrozsy in inancial nssets at amortized cost 58,027,905 54,834,146
{Incraase) In financiat asseta ot tair value through comprebensye incoma (22,259,008} (393,47}
(Incraase) In exaats hekl jor sals- nal {101,351 447) -
Increase in abllilies directy related to assels heid lor sale 65,801,335 .
Decrosse (thcroase) inimangible assets 489,792 [2.840.222)
Ney Cash Flows Generated From / {Used In) investing Activities 38k 487 51.400.447
Caah Flowa From Financing Activitles:
Incraase in non-coniroling interes! . 42,921
Incraase in borrowed funds 2,439,671 30,189,971
Dividends pald {17.824,881) (19.057.249)
Net Cash Flows Generated From / (Used tn) Financing Activivies (14,384,990) 11,175,655
EHeci of sxchiange rats fuct:adons on cash and cash equvaisnls 18.528) 4.929
{Becroany) f Not Increass In Cash And Crah Equivalants 34,554,970) 23,018.307
Cash and cath aquivaient - baginning of iha year 272,915,714 145.447.357
Cash And Cazh Egquivaleni - End O The Parod 27 238,360.744 168,458,884

The accompanying notes from ¥ to 35 constlihute an inlegral part of these condensad consolidated intesim financial

statements and should be resd with them and with the accompanying review report
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JORDAN KUWAIT BANK

{A PuBLIC LIMITED SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 30 JUNE 2018

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Jordan Kuwait Bank was eslablished as a Jordanian public limited sharaholding company under
number (108) on October 25, 1976 in accordance with the Jordanian Companies Law No. (13)
for the year 1964. The Bank's Head Oflice address is as foliows: Omaya Bin Abdshams Street,
Abdali - Amman. Tel. +862 (6} 5629400, P.O. Box 9776, Amman — 11191 Jordan.

The Bank is engaged in all banking and financial related operations through its branches lotalling
65 branches inside Jordan, five foreign branches, and three subsidiaries for financiat brokerage,
leasing and financial consulting.

Jordan Kuwait Bank is listed as a public limiled shareholding company on the Amman Stock
Exchange.

Jordan Kuwait Bank is owned by 50.927 % of Al Rawabi Intemnational Real Eslate Services
Company and the consolidated financial statements of the Bank are added in the consolidated
financial statements of Kuwait Projects Company Holding (KIPCO).

The consolidated interim financial siatements have been approved by the Bank's Board ol
Directors on 30 July 2018, and is subject to the approval of the Central Bank of Jordan.

(2 Summanry OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Following are the significant accounting policles used by the Bank in the preparation of these
interim condensed consolidated financial statements.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The accompanying interim condensed consolidated financial statements of the Bank as at 30
June 2018 have been prepared In accordance with Iniernational Financial Reporting Standards
Number 34 (Interim Financial Reporting Standards).

The intarim condensed consolidated financial statemenls are prepared in accordance with the
historical cost principle, except for financial assets and financial liabilities slaled at fair value
through profit or loss, financiat assels staled at fair value through other compeehensive Income
and financial derivatives siated at fair value at the date of the consolidaled financial statements,
Moraover, hedged financial assets and financial liabilities are also stated at fair value.

The reporting cumrency of the interim condensed consolidated financial statements is the
Jordanian Dinar, which is the functional currency of the Bank.

Thase Interim condensed consdlidated financial statements do not include all the information and
disclosures required in the annual financial siatements prepared in accordance with Intermnational
Financizl Reporting Standards and should be read in conjunction with the consolidaled financial
statements of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2017. Furthermore, the resulls of
operations for the six months ended 30 June 2018 do nat nacessarily reflact the expected resulls
for the year ending 31 December 2018, except for not appropriating the profit of the six months
ended on 30 Juna 2018 which is usually performed at year end.



JORDAN KUWAIT BANK

(A PUBLIC LIMITED SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As AT 30 JUNE 2018

2.2 Basis of Financial Statements Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Bank and controlled
subsidiaries. Control exists when the Bank has the ability to control the financial and aperating
policles of the subsidiaries in order ta obtain benefits from their activities. All transactions,
balances, revenue and expenses between the Bank and its subsidiaries are eliminated.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries raelating to the same liscal year of the Bank are
prepared using the same accounting policies adopted by the Bank. In case the accounting policies
applied by the subsidiaries are different from those adopted by the Bank, nacessary adjusiments
lo the financial statements of the subsidiaries has to be made in order to malch those applied by
the Bank,

Non-controlling inleresls represent the portion of the subsidiardes' equity nol cwned by the Bank.

The Bank owns the following subsidiaries as of 30 Juna 2018 and 31 December 2017:

Pald-up Owmnership of MNature of Date ol
Company's Nama CapHal the Bank Operalion Location Acguisition
JD %
Ejarah for Finance Leasing 20,000,000 100 Finance ARmMan 2011
Company Leasing
Speclalized Managefial s::ﬂ":?:::::‘ -
Company for Investment and 530,000 100 Amman 2016

other Financial

Financial Consullation Services

The resulls of operations of the subsidiaries are consolidated in the consolidated statement of
income from the date of acquisition, which represents the date when control over the subsidiaries
is passed on to the Bank. Moreover, the results of operations of the disposed of subsidiaries are
consofidated in the consolidaled statement of income until the disposal date, which represenis
the date when the Bank loses control over the subsidiaries.



JORDAN KuwAIT BANK

{A PuBLIC LIMITED SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 30 JUNE 2018

2.3 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The accounting policies applied in preparing these intenm condensed consolidated financial
stalemenls agree with those used in preparing the consolidated financial statements for the Bank
for year ending 31 Decembar 2017, except applying new standards and amendments on current
standards as mentioned below.

{a) New standards and amendments to standards and interpretations effective for
the annual perieds beginning after 1 January 2018, applied by the bank in
preparing these financial statements and do not have significant effect:

Amendments ta IAS 12 - ‘Income fax’ which explains measurement and
accounting for deferred tax assets.

Amendments to IAS 7, ‘Statement of cash flows'. The amendment requires
additional disclosures about changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities. The standard is effeclive for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2017 and early adoption is permitted.

Amendments to IAS 40, 'Transfers of Investment Property'.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs — 2012-2014 Cycle.

IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

Nature of change: The IASB has issued a new slandard for the recognition of
revenug, This will replace |IAS 18 which covers contracts for goods and services and
IAS 11 which covers construction contracts. The new standard is based on the
principle that ravenus is recognized when control of a good or service transfers to a
cuslomer. The standard permils a modified retrospective approach for the adoption
Impact: The management is not expecting any impact on the adoplion of this standard

over the Bank's linancial statements, as most of the Bank's income is generated
through sources not subject to this standard.

{b) New standards and interpretations that have been issued, and applied for the
reporting period 1 January 2018 with a significant impact:
IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments™:
Nature of change: IFRS 9 addresses the classification, measurement, derecagnition

of financial assels and financial liabilities, and introduces new rules for hedge
accounting and introduced a new impairment model.

Impact of adopling IFRS 9:

The Bank Is required to adopt IFRS 9 starting 1 January 2018, accordingly, the bank
had used the related drafi instructions issued by the Central Bank of Jordan 1o assess
the impact as of January 1, 2018 as per the requirements of the standard.

The lollowing are the mast impartant aspects of application;

10
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A-

Classification and measurement of financial assets

- Classification depends an the business model of the bank through which the financial
assel is managed as well as the contraclual cash flow characteristics. The Standard
sliminates the categories "held to maturity”, “loans and recelvables" and "available for
sale” under IAS 39,

-The Bank has reclassified the financial instruments among the categories determined
under IFRS 9 at amortlzed cost on fair value through statement of income at fair valus
through othar compreheansiva income and is allowed {or one time at the beginning of
2018 with a view 1o achieving the proper application of the Standard's requirements.
The reclassification is described in paragraph {f) of this note.

Classification and measurement of financial liabllities:

IFRS (9) has retained the requirements of IAS (39) regarding the classilication of
financial liabllities. 1AS 39 {revised) requires recognilion of the differences in the
assessment of financial liabilities classified as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas IFRS {9) requires:

- Recognition of differences in the assessment of financial liabllities classified as
financial ligbilities at fair value through statement of profit or [oss as a resuit of
changes in credit risk in the cansoalidated statement of comprehensive income.

- The remaining amount of fair value valuation differences is recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Hedge accounting

When initially applying IFRS (9), the Bank choose to continue applying the hedge
accounting requirements of IAS (39) instead of the requirements IFRS (9).

Impairment of financizal assets

IFRS (9) replaced the ‘incurred loss' mode! in IAS (39) with a torward-looking
'expected credit loss' model. Which requires the use of estimates and judgements o
estimale economic factars. The model will be applied to all financlal assets — debt
instruments which classified as amorlized cost or at fair value through statement of
comprehensive income ar at fair value through profit or loss.

Impaiment losses have been calculated in accordance with the requirements of IFRS
(9} in accordance with the following requirements:

1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 30 JUNE 2018

12 months impairment loss: The expected impairment Is calculated for the 12
months following the date of the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment losses for the useful life of the instrument: The expected impairment
an the life of the financial instrument is calculated until the maturity date of the
consolidated financial statements

The expected credit loss mechanism depends on the probability of default (PD). Which
is calculated according to the credit risk and future aconomic factors, the loss in default
(LGD), which depends on the value of the existing collateral, the axpasure at default
(EAD).

Disclosures

IFRS (9) requires detailed disclosures, parficularly with regard to hedge accounting,
credit risk, and expected credit losses.

Implementation
The Bank had reflected the effect of the standard implementation over the opening
balances of retained eamings on January 1, 2018, pravisions and non-controlling

interests rather than restaling the figures of the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2017 and earlier.

12
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As AT 30 JUNE 2018

The table below includes the effect on the opening balance as at 1 January 2018:;

Balance as at
Exposure to credit risk ralatad 1o assets 1 Decombaer
of the balance shest 2017
JD

Asnsla
Balances at banks and lnancial Institutions -
Qiract credit facilities - net 1.562.286,911
Financial assets at fair valuo through

statement of incoma 66,673,669
Transierred to FVOCI 66,673,669
From it: Dabt instruments 60,546,359
From It: Equity Toals 6,127,310
Financial assals al lair value through other

comprehensive Income 29,240,711
Financlal instrumants at amcriizad costs 395,100,921
Transierrad to FVOC) 30,838,972
From it: Debt instruments 30,836,972
Dafarmd tax assel (rasulting from an

Incraase in ECL) 11,299,458
Liabilities
QOihar ablities — Provision gn non-ckroct

crodit Iaclliles 45,367,012

Equity
Ganaral Banking Reseivas 14,288,875
RAetained Earnings 99,275,774

_Reciassiication

Jo

{66,673,669)
(86,673,669)
{60,546,359)

(6,137,310)

87,510,841

(30,838,972]
(30,835,972}

(30,838,572}

13

Expected credit Balance as at
losses (ECLY Effect of t January
impact reclassilication 2018
JD 40 Jo

(123,474) (123.474)

(48,453,733) - 1.515,833,178

{1.968,856) - 124,782,498

(33.976) . 364,229,973

- 17,282,560 28,582.016

8,912,605 . 55,279,817

(14,288,875) -

(26,921,210) 72,354,564
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The table below includes analysis of credit risk exposure for financial assets exposed lo
expected credit loss as at 1 January 2018:

Exposure lo credit risk relatad ta
nasets of the balanca shest

Deposits at banks and financial
Inslitutions 123,474
Financial assats at {air valus thmugh
comprehensiva incoma and amonlzed

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
JD JO JD

cosi 424,904 - 1,543,952
Direct cradit faciities - nat 10,944,899 9,573,498 25,835,328
Financial assats at amartized cost 33,978 - -
Other liabilities 2.480.989 458,517 6.932.089

14,008,252 10.072.015 34,412,377

Impact on Daferred

Tolal tax assats

JO JD

123,474 35,544
1,968,856 588,816
46.453,733 13,571,749
33,876 11,692
9.912 605 3.073.558
58.402 644 17,282,553

Nat effect

Jo

67,930

1,379,040
32,881,984
22,084

_6820.047
41,210,085

The table below clarities the expected credit losses for the subsequent period of 30 June

2018:
Stage 1 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 2

Individuals Totals Individuals Totals Stage 3 Talal
Balances at banks and financial
instiutions 8,151 - - - - 6.151
Ooposis at banks and (nancial
insttutions 56,801 - - - - 56,801
Direct crodit facilities — nel 9,160,242 - 5,299,918 - 82,529,768 96,989,928
Debt Instrumants within a portiolio of
linancial assets at amonized cosl 24,981 - - - - 24,981
Debt instrumants within a partiolio of
financtal assats at lair value through
cther comprahensive Income 413,392 - - - 1,544,918 1,956,210
financial collaterals 626,406 13 485 - 1,728,576 2,368,460
Unused limits . - - - - -
Leter ol credit 351,694 - 59,829 - 24,202 435,725
Othar assals 15.579 . - - - 15,579

10,655,248 - 53?_3.233 - 85,827,464 101,855,943

14
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The table below clarifies the opening balances for provisions after implementation of IFRS (8):

Oifference due Balance according
Current provision lore- lo IFRS (9) stage
balance measurement lhrae
JD JD Jo

Balances at banks and financial institutions - 123,475 123,475
Direc) credil lacililes - net 48,321,311 46,453,733 95,775,064
Debt instruments within a portiolio of financial
asseds ai amortized cost - 33,976 33,976
Debl instruments within a portfolio of financial
assels at fair value through othar comprahensive
income - 1,968,856 1.968,856
Non-direct credit facilities— nel - 5,802,315 9,802,315

Distribution of exposures according to the economic sector depending on the stages of iIFRS

(9) classification;

Stage
Staga 1 Staga 1 Stage 2 2

|ndividuals Tolals Individuals Totals Stage 3 Total
Financlal 276,787,132 - i - 125,084 276,912,222
Indusial 529,365,473 - 37,463,676 - 13,712,157 580,545,308
Trade 341,723,363 - 25,597,466 - 20,876,293 368,297,148
Real estates 137,985,105 - 13,850,150 - 47,446,066 199,282,161
Agricutiura 18,735,258 - 17,978,484 - BEB.668 38,602,428
Shares 23,014,288 - 50,000 - . 23,064,288
Individuals 238,842,901 - 7,074,405 - 14,796,235 280,715,541
Governmental and public secior 71,672,892 - - - - 71,672,892
Sarvices 602,785.834 - 4.401.762 - 78.292.146 685,479,741

2.241,916,248 - 106.416,020 - 176.239.467 2.524.571,735

Distribution of exposures according to the Geaographieal distribution depending on the stages

of IFAS (9) classification:

Stage Stage
Stage 1 1 Stage 2 2
Individuals Tolals Individuats Totals Stago 3 Total

Insida the Kingdom 1,838,401,350 - 106,416,020 - 160,508,331 2,105,325,741
Othar Middie Eastem - - - - 176,142,980
couniias 178,142,980
Europe 208,917,412 . - - 15,589,336 224 506,748
Asla 16,454,468 - - . 141,600 16,596,266
Alrica - - . - - .
USA . - - - . -
Cther countries - - - - - -

2.241,916.248 - 106.416.020 - 176,239,467 2.524.571.735
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As AT 30 JUNE 2018

Tolal credit exposures that has been classitied:

Stage 2 Slage 3
The The Rate of
axposyres exposures Total exposures
Total Ihat have Total that have exposwes thal  thathave
eXposure been BXposUe been have been been
vaiug reclassified valug reclassified reclassified = _reclassified
Balances at Central banks - - - - - -
Balances at banks and financial
instilutions - - - - - -
Depaslis at banks and financial
institutions - - - - - -
Diracl cradi facilitles — net 97,972,253 20,332,335 160,715,07% 23,489,747 43,822,082 1%
Bonds and Treasury Bills - - - - - -
Within financial assels at lalr value
through stalement of incoma - - - - - -
Wilhin financial assels at falr value
through other comprehensiva income - - 13,231,800 - - -
Within financia! assels at amortized
cosis - - - - - -
Derivatives ol financial instrumenis - - - - - -
Financial assels morigaged (debt
instruments) - - - - - -
Other assetls 97,972,253 20,332,335 173,846,879 23.489.747 43.822_.082 17%
Financtal collzterals 5,642,282 5,000,073 2,248,858 177,908 5,177,984 66%
Letter of credil 2,801,485 175.000 43,730 - 175,000 6%
Other Liabifitles -

106,416,020 25,507,408 176,239,467 23.667.655 49.175.063 17%

16
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JORDAN KUWAIT BANK

{A PUBLIC LIMITED SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 30 JUNE 2018

Risk Management:

The responsibilities of the Risk Managemant Depariment of the Bank include all the Bank's
departments and branches operaling inside and outside the Kingdom as well as iis
subsidiaries through identifying, detemining, measuring and managing risks under
international best practices and within the limits of the functions and responsibilities of Risk
Management.

The responsibilities of the Risk Management Department in the Bank include the following
areas:

Credit risk

This represents the potential loss resulting from the customer's inability or
unwillingness to meet ils obligations on time. These risks are ona of the most significant
risks to Banks.

- Market rigk
This represents the losses that the Bank may be exposed to as a result of any financial
positions within or outside the balance sheet due lo any changes occurring in the
market prices,

Liquidity risk

This represents the losses that the Bank may be exposed to due o lack of funds
needed to finance the increase of its investments or to repay ils obligations when they
become due on time with appropriate cost. (This s part of asset and liahility
management (ALM). Reporis, in this regard, are prepared by Risk Managemaent).

Interest rate risk

This represents the exposure to adverse movements in interest rales that affects tha
profitability of the Bank due to the change in net interest income and in the economic
value of the cash flows of assels and liabilities.

tional rf

This represents the loss resulting from the failure or inadequacy of inlernal procedures,
human slement, systems, or external events. This definition includes legal risk but not
the strategic and reputation risk.

Information Security & Business Continuity Risk

This represents the loss resulting from the use of information by unauthorised persons,
or the disclosure, distribution, modification, destruction of deletion of such information.
This definition applies to any type of information whether written on paper or in a file
on Intemet. This also includes business continulty and disaster recovery.

13
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AS AT 30 JUNE 2018

Detailed responsibilities and functions of risk management sactions

1-

2.

Credit Risk:

The Risk Management Department reviews the credit policy periodically and in
coordination with the representatives of corporate and individual facilities. The policy is
the indicator and the basic guide for the different duty stations In clarifying the degres
of credit risk acceptable o these stations.

Opinions on credit applications are expressed by the Risk Management within the credit
terms specified by the Board of directors without financial responsibility.

The internal credit rating system is reviewed and evaluated independently of the credit
marketing departments through the Risk Managemeni, The Bank has a system
documented and approved by the Board. Any element that may contribuie to the
expactation of a client's default is taken inlo consideration, which helps in measuring
and classifying customer risks. This should facllitate the decision-making process,
pricing facilities and determining cuslomer and product profitability, credit management
and the raview and anatysis of credit portfolic. In addition, it helps to retain the necessary
data thal facilitate the application of foundation internal ratings-based approach (FIRB)
to credit risk within the Basel requirements. An automated credit rating system is
implemented to support this, The Scoring Card System is used in the same framewaork.
The Risk Department recommends, independently of the credit marketing depariments,
to set specific controls and limits, documented with clear policies and procedures to
ensure compliance therewlth. Such limits are reviewed periodically and adjusted, if
necessary. There are specific limits set out and approved by the Board of Direclors in
dealing with banks, countries and various economic sectors. One of its tasks includes
defining limils for any possible concentration of credit guarantees or producls.

The Risk Management Department preparas an analysis of the credil portfolio whereby
the Board of Direclors is clearly provided with an indication of the quality and ditferant
ralings thereof. The Board is also provided with any concentrations as well as historical
benchmarking comparisons along with the banking sector whare possible, Therealier,
appropriate recommendations to miligale exisling risks are mada.

Market Risk:

The Bank has specific policies and procedures approved by the Board of Directos for
identifying, measuring, monitoring and controlling the market risk. These are periodically
reviewed, and the implementation thereof Is monilored. Such policies Inchide:

Investment policy: the representatives of Treasury and Risk Departments develop and
review this policy and amend it annually, if required. They also present it 1o the
investment Committee and the Assets and Liabilities Committee.

The Bank has a writlen market risk policy approved by the Board of Directors that
describes how to identify, measure, control and mitigate market risks. The Bank also
has written policies appraved by the Board of Directors, which define the fundamenials
of portfolio management and investment funds, including operational bases, desired
investment instruments and effective controls, in addition to a policy clarifying the basis
for dealing between the Bank and its customers in convertible foreign currancies and
major precious metals on a margin basis. The Risk Management Depariment develops
such policies in cooperation with the concemed depariments. Periodic (daily and
monthly) reports are submitied by Middle Office under market risk / risk management
for adherenca with the above policias.

The Risk Managemenl Department prepares Value at Risk (‘VAR') and measures
sensilivity analysis, interest rate risk, limits and other reporis included in the relevant
policies approved.
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3- Liguidity risk:

The Risk Management Depariment, in cooperation with the Treasury Depariment,
develops a written policy for liquidity risk management which is approved by the Board of
Directors ol the Bank.

- The Risk Management Depariment monitors the Bank's commitment to liquidity ratios set
by the Central Bank of Jordan and the supervisory authorilies under which the Bank's
branches operate. The Bank's liquidity is monitored on a dally basis by the Treasury
Department.

Liguidity is also monitored by the Asset and Liabllity Management Committee chalred by
the Director General and comprises the Head of Risk Management. It is governed by the
ALCO Palicy through periodic reports prepared by the Risk Management Depanments
and the Treasury Depariment. They are presented and considered by the Committee
members who make appropriate recommendations in this regard.

The Risk Management Department, in coordination with the Treasury Department,
prepares a written policy for a Liquidity Contingency Plan to addrass any liquidity problems
at the Bank, at various ievels and scenarios which is approved by the Board of Directors
of the Bank.

4- QOperational rigk:

The Risk Management Department prepares and reviews documenled policies and
pracedures for identifying, evaluating, mitigating and controlling operational risks, This is
done to ensure compliance with the Basel requiraments and to enhance the eificiency
and effscliveness of the Bank’s contral environment. The Bank uses an automated
operalional risk system covering the Self-Assessment areas and Events Collection
system, and identifies and analyses Key Risk Indicators {KRI) to the Bank's operation
cantres.

Combination between different risk managemeni is done by the Risk Management
Department when setting controls and procedures to ensure that all risks are hedged to
achieve the concept of Entarprise Risk Management.

The Bank has documented Standard Operating Procedures (SOP's) that are reviewed
and amended periodically by the relevant departments and under the supervision of the
Operations Development Department. Any proceduras that are modified ar developed,
including any new products, are presented lo depantments of intermal audit, compliance
and risks to study possible risks and adequacy of existing controls.

5- information Security & Business Continuity Management

The Risk Management Department develops a clear, documented, and approved
Business Continuity Plan. The necessary lests are made regularly thereto, in accordance
with the broad concept of Business Continuity Management supported by the DRS
automated system for more efficient business continuity management, and in line with the
instructions issued by the Central Bank of Jordan, and in accordance with international
best practices in this regard.

21
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A team for Information Technology Securily has been mobilised, reporting directly to Risk
Management in order to support them. Such team is independent in ils reporting from the
Director of Information Systems Depasimert. This is done in accordance with the
international best practices including the 1S0O27001 and PCI requirements.

Risk Management participates in the preparation of an appropriate risk assessment in the
event af a new activity or product on the verge of being launched in a particular market.

6- Interest rate risk

The Rigk Management Department prepares a documented interest rate risk policy that
governs the identification, measurernent and control of interest rate risk within the ALM's
framework - ALCO, approved by the Board of Directors. The Risk Management

Department prepares the necessary reports and submits to the ALCO Commitiee in the
Banic.

Compliance with Basel decisions

The Depariment overseas the implementation of the requiremenis of the various Basel
declsions, including the accounting of Basel )l capital adequacy ratios including liquidity
ratios, and effectively contributes to Capital Budgeling.

The Deparntment prepares strass tests, evaluates internal capital and issues analytical reports
on capital,

The Department also issues various financial analyses of banks with the preparation of new

analyses specialised in specific aspects by taking advantage of the disclosures issued by
banks.

First: The descriptive disclosures:

1. Definition of the Bank's implementation of detault and the mechanism of addressing it:
The Bank defines the default and the mechanism of addressing it in accordance with the
instructions of the Central Bank regarding the application of IFRS 8 No. 13/2018 issued
on 6/6/2018, The Central Bank's instructions No. (47/2009) dated 10/12/2009 (item 11 /
D) include a number of indicators on a default event which must also be complied with,

The main content of the definition of default is the items that indicate or result in non-
compliance with contractual conditions such as:

- The existence of dues equal 1o or greater than (S0) days.

- Increase in risk ratings above -7.

- Credit exposure / debt instruments that have evidence that they have become
defaulted (irregular) or are expected to be defaulted soon.

- The debtor party is experiancing significant financial difficulties (very weak financial
statements).

- The existance of clear indications that the debtor is near bankruptey.

The machanism of addressing default:

The Bank will lollow-up with the customer before their default, trying not 1o raach the
stage of classificalion of the facilities granted to them. in case of classification, the
specific provision will be made against the facllities in accordance with the Instructions
and standards. In additian, they will be followed-up by the Department of Follow-up &
Collections before stagting the legal procedures in case of failure to reach solutions or
schedules according 1o the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan and the supervisory
authorities in the countries where the Bank operales,
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2. A detailed explanation of the Bank's internal credit rating system and its working
mechanism:

- Internal credit rating system for corporate customers:
The Bank has an automated internal credit rating system from Moody's supplier. The
rating system includes all of the processes, controls, data collectad, and the information
system that support and asses the credit quality of the borrower. It is then translated to
the degree of risk to custorners and linked to the possibility that the customer will defautt.
This contributes to caleulating the expected credit loss.
Moody's system that contains following models to calcutate customers credit rating:

v Large Enterprises Rating Modal.

v SME Rating Mode! (with financial data).

v SME Rating Model (without financial data).

v Customer Rating Mode! for Project Financing.

v" High net worth customers Rating Model.

The grades in the system ranga from 1 (Exceptional: 2 very high quality and fow risk

company) to 10 (Poor: a non-working classilied company) - 7 working grades and 3

non-working grades.

There s a clear and specliic Master scale. Each credit rating is calculated by Moody's,
offset by the prebability of dafault (PD}.

Financial and non-financial analysis of clienls is made. Moody's Financial Analysis
Structure consists of four main sections:

1- Operations:

2- Liguidity:

3- Capital structure:
4- Debl Service:

An override can be used to classify the customer through an approval of the Facility
Management Committee for the proposed ratings.

Internal Credit Scoring System for individual customers:
Aetall customers (individuals) are rated and given a rating grade based on their risk

before their loans are approved. Such ratings are utilised to estimale the probabillity of
default. This is done for housing loan products, auto finance and consumer loans.
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3. The mechanism adopted to calculate expected credit losses (ECL) on financial
instruments for each item:

The "loss test” model Is used using the ECL modal, which requires the use of estimates
and judgments lo estimate the economic factors that have an efiect on the impairment in
accordance with the new model. This model has been applied and the impairment loss
has been calculated In accordance with the following rules:

12-month impairment losses: The expected impairment of default is calculated within
12 months following the date of the financial statements.

- Impairment losses for the useful life of the instrument: The expecled impairment on
the life of the financial instrument is calculated until the maturity date of the
consolidated financial slatements.

The mechanism for calculating expected losses depends on the probability of default,
which is calculated according to the credit rigk, future economic factors and loss given
default (LGD), which depends on the value of the existing collateral and the amount
of the exposure at default (EAD).

ECL are calculated for all financial assels of the Bank individually using the risk
components of each instrument according to the following equation:

ECL =PD " LGD " EAD.

In accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9, ECL measurement madel is applied within
the fallowing framework (except as measured at fair value through statement of incoma):

Loans and credit facilities (direct and indirect).

- Dabt instruments carried at amortised cost.

- Debtinstruments classified at fair value through other comprehensive income.

- Financial guarantees provided in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9.

- Trade receivables.

- Credit exposuras to banks and financial institutions [excluding current balances used
to cover bank transactions such as remittances, guarantees and credils within a very
short period of time (days)].

In respect of renewable facilities, ECL are calculated based on the behavioural maturity of
three years,

4. Definition and mechanism for calculating and monitoring the probability of default
{PD}, exposure at default (EAD) and loss given default (LGD).

A- Probability of Default (PD):

This represenls Ihe risk arising from the borrower's inability or unwillingness to rapay
its debts in full or on time, which is normally anticipated by analysing the customer's
ability o repay its debt in accordance with its financial stalemants. The probability of
default of the customer generally relates o financial data such as insulficient cash
flows to service debt, low operafing income or margins, high leverage or low liquidity.
Accounling is done as follows:
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Corporate customers:

PD is calculated by linking the credit ratings within the intemal credit rating to the grade
of default identified in the Master Scale and for each individual customer. The
probability of default is converted from Through the Cycle (TTC) lo Polint in Time, after
ihe credit rating has been calibrated and the prabability of default to match the bank's
default data.

For defaulled loans (Slage 3), the probability of default is set at 100%.

Accounts not rated intemally are assumed to have a rating grade of 5 with the Bank
and -5 with Ejara Company.

The probability of default was calculated for the Jordanian government based on its
external credit rating.

Retzil customers:

Their PD is calculated based on Behavioural Scoring and based on logistic regression for
each customer.

For debt instruments and money market, Moody's external cradit rating was adopted, If the
debt instrument of an unrated company is lrealed as unrated companies. As for the unrated
banks, the credit rating of the country io which the bank belongs is adopled and adjusted to
suit the financial salidity of the Bank.

B- The Proportion of Losses Given Default:

This represents the ratio of assats that are expected to be lost if the customer defaults.
This ratic Is defined at the level of the facility rather than at the customer level. it is
alfected by various factors such as the availability of collateral, type of guarantee,
priority of payment, the duration and quality of the loan. The accounting is done as
follows:

Corporate customers and debt instruments:

An LGD accounting system is used based on a number of determinants, including the
customer's credit rating, economic sector, type and value of collateral and coverage
ratio. These are calculated based on historical information,

Haircut rates have been made for guarantees greater than those specified by the
instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan.

Setting floor limits for LGD ranging from 0% to 10%.

Defaulted facilities (Slage 3) - The proportion of LGD has been identified for the
unsecured portion with guaranteas of 100%,

The ratio of LGD lo the Jordanian government was set at 0%.

Retail customers:

A model was developed for the accounting (Logistic regression model) using the variables
used in the accounting of the Probability of Default model.
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C- Exposure at Default (EAD):

The amourt at risk is defined as the amount of the indebtedness in which the Bank is
axposed to the probability of default in the case of a customer default as following:

The current balance of direct facilities and a CCF proportion of 100% for indirect

1acilities.

= In the case of limils, the value of the amount exposed to the default shall be divided
into two paris: the utilised obligations and the unutilised obligations where the balance
or celling is calculated, whichever is higher.

- For retall, credit is used to determine the value of the default amount using the facllities
prepayment ratio of customers.

5. Determinants of the significant change in the credit risk on which the Bank relled
in calculating expected credit losses.

Ratlng

Criterla

Stage 1:

This Includes credit exposuras / debt instrumants that have not received
a signilicant increase in their credit risk since the initial recognition of the
exposure / instrumant or have a low credit risk ai the date of preparation
of the financial statements. Credit risk is considered to be low if the
lollowing conditions are met:

Low default risk.

The debtor has a high ability in the short term to meat its obligations.
The Bank does not expect adverse changes in the economy in the long-

term working enviranment adversely affecting the debtor's ability to meet
its cbligations (macroeconomic indicators and stress tests).

Slage 2:

Accounts with dues more than 30 days and less than 20 days.

Accounis thal were previously scheduled,

Accounis that were structurad twice in a year.

Accounts rated by inlernal credit -7.

In case of reducing the actual or expected internal credit rating of the
borrowar or the credit exposure / debt instrument according to the
internal rating system applied by the Bank.

Actual or expected significant decrease in the extamal eredit rating of the
credit exposure / debt instrument.

Substantial negative changes in the performance and behaviour of the
borrawer such as late payment of inslalments or unwillingness o
raspond to the Bank.

Stage 3:

This includes credit exposure / debt instruments that have evidence(s)
that they have defaulted (irregular) or are expected to defaull saon.

The debtor is experiencing significant financial difficulties (very weak
financial data).

Non-compliance with contractual conditions such as the existence of
malurities equal fo or greater than (90) days, and credit rating higher than
7.

The existence of clear indications that the debtor is near bankruptcy.

In addition to the above, the Central Bank Instructions No. {47/2000)
dated 10/12/2009 (item Il / D) Includes a number of indicalors
demonstrating an event of default which must also be complied with,
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6.

7.

There are clear and specific criteria for ratings in the three slages (a, 2 and 3) and the
transfer among them. According to the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan,
which state that in the event of an improvement in the quality of credit and the
availability of sufficient and documented reasons making it possible to transier credit
exposures from Siage 3 to Stage 2 1o or from Stage 2 to Stage 1, the transfer should
only take place afler the improvement of the credit position of the exposure and the
obligation to pay at least three monthly Instalments, two quarierly instalments or semi-
annual instalment an time, in addition to improving the credit rating of the customer to
be higher than -7 in order to be {ranslerred to Stage 1.

The downgrade of credit rating / debt instrument by two grades on the ten-paint rating
system since the date of initial recognition is evidence of a signlificant credit risk
decline,

Key econemic indicators used by the Bank in calculating expected credit loss.
The Bank uses key economic indicalors in calculating expected cradit loss, as follows:

Corporate: GDP growth indicators and the financial markat index

Retail: A larger number of variables has been used, the mosl important of which are
consumer price index, GDP, interbank rate of interest, volume of consumption,
expecled inflation, unemployment rate, discount rate, deposit rate and other rates.

Governance of applying the requirements of IFRS 9, including the responsibilities
of the Board of Directors and Executive Management to ensure compliance with
the requirements of IFRS 9.

Bank's Board of Directors

The Board of Directors Is responsible for esiablishing the Bank's acceptable risk profile
and effective management of risk management.

The Board of Direclors is responsible and authorised to approve the expecled credit
losses in the Bank's financial statements.

The Board of Direclors of the Bank shall provide appropriate governance structure and
procedures to ensure the proper application of IFRS 9 by defining the roles of the
commitieas, depariments and working units of the Bank, ensuring the integrity of the
work among them and providing the appropriale infrastructure.

The Board of Directors shall ensure that the Bank's management develops the
necessary systems to provide adequate and accurate information and data in order to
provide the Bank with the accurate abllity to calcutate and with the paricipation of all
refevant business units in the Bank and under the supervision of the Board of Directors
and its related committees.

The Board of Direclors shall ensure that the Bank's management implements high
quality and refiable quality systems in terms of inputs, operating processas and results.
The Board of Directors shall ensure that the Bank's contro! units, spacifically risk
department, intamal audil department work to verify the validity and integrity of the
methodologies and systems used in the application of IFRS 9 and o provide the
necessary support o these supervisary units.

Board of Directors' Audit Committee:

The Committee monitors compliance with the expected credit lass accounting
framewark In accordance with IFRS 3 and ensures that all aspecis of the internal audit
are auditad.

The Committee recommends to the Board of Directors tha adoption of expected credil
loss figures as part of the quanterly financial statements.
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Board Risk Committee:

The Commitiee reviews and recommends the adoption af the credit risk assessment
framework and assumptions.

The Committee is rasponsible for the accounting of expected credit losses and is
reviewed at the level of the Board of Directors with respect 1o the roles and models
used for the accounting.

Management Cammittee for Allocations:

- Itis responsible for any matter refated to provisions, accounting processes and follow-
up matters relating to accounting

- It is responsible for any exceptions to the results of the oulputs of the sysiems, the
specific procedures and the documented models of the accounting process.
It reviews the process of staging rules and sets the necessary recommendations.
It views the accounting of the expected credit losses and recommends the adoption.

Risk Management:

The Risk Management Department undertakes the necessary wark to verify the validity
and integrity of the methodologies and systems used in the application of {FRS 9.
ltis responsible for the accounting of expected credit losses .
it reviews the used models and assumptions used in lhe sccounting and recommends
any required modifications to the Independent model validation .

- It evaluate the credit rating systems, delerminants and resuits.
It analyses the various accounting results and reviews the accuracy and efficiency of
the accounting process.

- It prepares detailed sfalements required by the Central Bank of Jordan

- ltmakes recommendations to the Appropriations Committee on any override operation

- it develops indicators that are indicators of significant change in credit risk.
- It reviews the transition between different stages, compares them with staging rulas
and reviews these limits pericdically.

Finance Department:

- It participates with the depariments concemed with reviewing the business model,
through which the objeclives and bases of acquisition and classification of financial
instrumenls are determined, in order 1o ensure integralion with other business
requirements.

- It prepares accounting restrictions and reverse the results of the accounting on the
main banking system.

- It prepares necessary disclosures in cooperation with the concerned departments in
the Bank.

Internal audit:

The Internal Audit Department undertakes the necessary work to verily the validity and
integrity of the methodologies and systems used in the application of IFRS 9.
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() New standards and Interpretations applied for annual reporting period
commencing 1 January 2018 and which are early adopted by the Bank:

IFRS 16 “Leases"

Nature of change: IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. it will resull in almost all
leases being recognized on the balance sheet, as the distinction belween operating
and finance leases Is removed. Under the new standard, an assat (the right to use the
leased item) and a financial liability lo pay rentals are recagnized. The only exceptions
are short-term and low-value leases. The accounling for lessors will nol significantly
changs,

Impact: The Standard will primarily affect the accounting of the Bank's operating
leases. As at the reporting date, most of the Bank’s operating leases are short-tarm
and low-value leases. Therelore, the standard is not expected to have any financial
impact on the Bank.

Mandatory application date: Mandatory for financial years commencing on or after
1 January 2019. At this stage, the Company doas nat intend to adopt the standard
before its effective date. The company intends to apply the simplified transition
approach and will not restate comparative amounts for the year prior to first adoption.

{3} ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements and the application of
accounting polficies require from the Bank's management to estimate and assess some items
affecting financial assets and liabilities and to disclose contingent liabilities. These estimates and
assumptions also affect income, expenses, provisions, and the financial assets valuation reserve.
In particular, they require the Bank’s management io estimale and assess the amounts and timing
of future cash flows. The aferementioned estimates are based on several assumptions and factors
with varying degrees of consideration and uncertainty. Furthermore, the actual resulls may ditier
from the estimates due to the changes arising from the conditions and circumstancas of those
eslimates in the future.

Management believes that the estimates used in the consolidated financial statements are
reasonable. The details are as follows:

- A provision is set for lawsuils raised against the Bank and subsidiaries. This provision
is subject to an adequaie legal study prepared by the Bank and subsidiaries’ legal
advisars. Moreover, the study highlights potential risks that may be encountered in the
future. Such legal assessments are reviewed frequently.

- A provision for loans is taken according to bases and estimates approved by
management in conformity with the Central Bank of Jordan instructions and IFAS 9.

- Impairment loss for the properies seized by tha Bank is taken after a sufficlent and
recent evaluation of the acquired properties has been conducted by approved
surveyors, and impairment loss is reviewed periodically.
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- Management periodically reassesses the economic useful lives of tangible and
intangible assets for calculating annual depreciation and amortization based on the
general status of these assets and the assessment of thelr useful economic lives
expected in the future. Impairment loss is taken o the consolidated statement of
income.

- Management frequently reviews the financial assets staled at cost to astimate any
decline in their value. Impairment loss is taken o the consolidated statement of
income.

- Fair value hierarchy: The Bank is required 1o determine and disciose the level in the
fair value hierarchy inlo which the fair value measurements are categorized in their
enlirety, segregaling fair value measurements in accordance with the levels delined in
International Financial Reporting Standards. Differenliating between Level (2) and
Level (3) fair value measurements, i.e., assessing whether inputs are observable and
whether the unobservable inputs are significant, may require judgment and carefu!
analysis of the inputs used to measure falr value, including consideration of factors
specific to the asset or liability. When evaluating the fair value of the financial asset or
liability, the Bank uses market information (if available) and in the absence of the first
level inputs, the Bank deals with the independent and qualified parties to prepare
evaluation studies. Appropriate methods of assessment and inpuls used lo prepare
the evalualion are reviewed by management.

{4) CASH AND BIALANCES AT CENTRAL BANKS

Mandalory cash reserve amounted lo JD 93,374,518 as of June 30, 2018 (JD 94,233,506 as of
December 31, 2017).

Except for the statutory cash reserve, there are no restricted balances as of June 30, 2018 and
December 31, 2017.

There are no Certificates of Deposits as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017,

Central Bank's balances movement (Unaudiled):

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Individually Individually Incividually Total

Tolal balance as a! baginning of the period 34,211,749 - - 34,211,749
New balances during tha period . - c -

{20,858,800) - - (29,858,800)
Pald balances {Repald/ Derecognized)
Transferred 1o stage 1 (537,159) . - {537,159)
Transfarred to stage 2 - - - -
Transferred ta stage 3 - - - -
Changes from amendments - - - -
Written off balances - - - -
Changes due 1o changes in exchange - - - -
ralas
Total balance as at pericd end 3,815,780 - - 3.815,790
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Provision for impainment loss movemant:

Stage 1 Slage 2
Individually Individually Stage 3

Total

Total balance as at beginning of the period 31,114 - .
Loss on impakrment over balances added during the

period i & r
Reversed from impairment loss over seltied

balances (Repald/ Derecognized) {20,937y
Transferred to slage 1 (4.026)
Transferred 10 staga 2 -
Transterred to stage 3
impact on provision - as al period end - dua to

reclassification batween the 3 stages during the

period -
Changes from amendmenis -
Written off balances -
Chenges due o changes in exchange rates .

LI I B
e MY

[ L )
s e 1 0 e

31,114

{20,937}
(4,026)

Tatal balance as st period end 8.151

6,151

{5) BALANCES AT, BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTTUTIONS

Non-inleres! bearing balances at banks and financial institutions amounted to JD 78,153,705 as

June 30, 2018 (JD 45,098,151 as of December 31, 2017).

Restricted balances amounted to JD 709,000 as of June 30, 2018 (JD 2,558,072 December 31,

2017},

The provision for impalment on balances with banks and financial institutions are in accordance
wilh Intermnational Financial Reporling Standard Na. (9) amounted to JD 56,801 as of June 30,

2018.

Balances al banks and financial institutions movement:

Stage 3
Stage 1 Stage 2 Individually
Individualty Individually Toial

Tatal balance as at beginning of the period / year 163,020,554 163,020,584
New balances during the period 53,653,140 - - 53,653,140
Pald balances (Repaid/ Derecagnized) {82,068,423) - . {82,068,423)
Transfared to stage 1 21,126,596 - - 21,126,596
Transferved lo stage 2 - - - -
Transferred lo stage 3 - - -

Changes from amendments - - - -
Written off balances - . - -
Changes due lo changes in exchange ratas - - - -
Tolal balance as ot pariod end / year 158,731,907 - - 155,731,907

I
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Provision for impalmment loss movement:
Slage 1

Inchvichsally

Total balance as at pariod beginning 92,284
L.oss on impairment ever balances added during lhe
period 31,548
Raversed from impalment loss over settied
balances (Repaid/ Daracognized) (73.028)
Transfarred to stage 1 5975
Transferred to stage 2 -
Translerred to stage 3 -
Impact on provision - as at period end - due 1o
reclassification between the 3 stages during the
period
Changes Irom amandmenis
Written off balances
Changes due lo changes in exchange rales

Slage 2
Incividualy

a
Individually Tolal

-

LI R '}

e 92,284
. 31,548

(73.028)
5,975

Taola! balonce as at period end 56,779

L3 LU ]

L3 I B R ]

56.779

(6} DEPOSITS AT BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

There are no deposits mature after one year as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017.

There are no deposits thal mature after six months to one year as of June 30, 2018 and December

31, 2017,

There are no deposits mature within three to six months as of June 30, 2018 and (JD 6,246,210

December 31, 2017.)

The resiricted deposits amounted to 17,725 JD as at 30 June 2018 and 31 December 2017,

- Provisions for impairment in respect of balances with banks and financial inslitutions in
accordance with Inlemational Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 9, 21 JD as of June 30,

2018.

(7} DiRECT CREDIT FACILITIES - NET

indlviduals (retall):

Qverdrait accounts

Loans and promissory notes”
Cradit cards

Real ostate lcena

Companiea:

Large

Overdralt acoounts

Loans and promissory notes®
Small and Madium

Overdrall accounts

Loans and promissory mies®
Govemmaent and public sector
Total

Lass. Provision of impalment loss in direct credit laclities
Intarast in suspenso

Net Diract Credit Facliles

32

June 30,
2018 Dacember 31, 2017
Unaudiiad Auditad
JD JD
928,803 12,451,878
128,841,422 128,561 331
12.580,003 10,876,355
252,975,158 222,533,778
219,259,532 223,112,571
818,848,318 806,059,454
16,380,524 11,413,861
94,099,062 94,088,879
104.987,096 114,811,877
1,649,000,725 1,624,009,781
(96,989,528) {49,321,331)
(15.255,632) {12,401,538)
1.536,754,165 1,562,286,911
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*Nel alter deducting interest and commission received in advance of JD 186,601 as of June 30,
2018 (JD 227,653 as of December 31, 2017).

Credit acilities within stage 3 amounted to JD 175,937,405 which Is equivalent to (10.7%) of
total direct credit facilities as of June 30, 2018 (against non-performing facilities that amounted
to JD 89,714,830 which is equivalen! to (5.5%) of total direct credit facilities as of December 31,
2017},

Credit facilities within stage 3 net of interest and commissions in suspense amounted to JD
160,715,079 which is equivalent to (9.8%) of total direct credit facilities balance after deducting
suspended interest as of June 30, 2018 (against JD 77,313,291 which is equivalant to (4.8%) of
total direct credit facilities balance after deducting suspended interest as of December 31,
2017).

Direct credit facilities granted lo and guaranteed by the Government of Jordan amounted to JD
60,698,871 which is equivalent to {3.7%) of tolal direct credit faciiities as of June 30, 2018

{against JD 67,116,547 which is equivalent to (4.1%) as of December 31, 2017).

Provision of Impairment Loss in Direct Credit Facililies

The following Is the movernent on the provision of impairment loss in direct credit facilities during

the period / year:

Companies
Govermnmenl
Resal Eslate Small and and Public
individuals Loans Large Medium seclor Total
JO JD J0 JD JD JD

For the six months Ended

June 30, 2018
Balance — baginning of the

parlad 6,277,001 3,801,118 37,772,012 1,371,199 - 49,321,331
Effect of adepling IFAS (9)-

Note (2) 4.497,126 10,294,979 27.807,871 d.844.280 9,477 46,453,733
Balance- al the beginning of

iha period 10,774,127 14,198,098 65,579,883 5,215,478 9477 85,775,06¢
Add: daducted from income

during the period 4,476,164 3,941,317 15,182,878 2,234,067 - 25,834,446
Lass: Surplus in provision of

credit fachities 4,418.751 3,433.668 15,063,850 1,652.836 9,477 24,619.582
Balance - End of the

Periad 10,830,540 14,703,747 65,698,911 5,756,730 - 06,969,928
Total provisions- slage 1 5,675,657 1,128,132 2,162,963 193,490 - 8,160,242
Taotal provisions- slage 2 928,357 997,671 3,258,153 105,537 - 5,299,018
Total provisions- slage 3 4,236,526 12,577.744 60,267,795 5,457,703 - 82.529.768

10.830.540 14,703,747 65,698,911 5,756,730 - 96.989.923__
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Companies
Governme
nt and
Real Estale Small and Public
Individuals Loans Large Medium sactor Tatal
JD JD JD JD JD JD

For period Ended December

i, 2017
Balance - beginning of the

period 6,442,539 5,471,122 59,072,935 2,133,777 . 73,120,373
Deducted from Income during

ihe period 1,739,660 827,082 26,175,921 355,817 - 29,098,280
Surplus in provision of credit

laclifties {1,560,757) {2,397,085) {9,699,949) (1,066,520) 3 {14,724,351)
Used from provision during the

year (writlen-ofi) * {344,441) - - {51,675) - {396,116)
Nan performing credit ofi-
cansolidated stalement of
financial positions

- - (37,776,855) - = (37.776,855)

Balance - End of the Period £,277.001 3,901,119 37.772.012 1,371,188 - 49,321,331
Total of watch list provisions 268,063 148,006 2,001,010 26,629 - 2,314,708

Total non-performing pravisions___ 6,008,938 3,882,113

8.277.001 3.8901,119

35.771.002 1,344,571

37,772,012 1.371.200

47.006,624

49,321,332

“According to the Board of Directors decision, direct credit facilities were written off during the

year of 2017 amounted to JD 396,116.

~The disclosure above is relaled to provisions agalnst debts calculated on the basis of the

individual customer.

-The provisions no longer needed due 1o settlements or repayments of debis transferred against
other debts amounted to JD 24,619,583 As of June 30, 2018 (against JD 14,724,351 as of

December 31, 2017).



JORDAN KuwAIT BANK

(A PusLIC LIMITED SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As AT 30 JunE 2018

Movement on facilities - Consolidated at period end

Total balance as at period
beginring

New facilllias during the year
Paild balances (Repaid/
Derecognized)

Transferred to stage 1
Transferred to stage 2
Transferred to staga 3
Changes {rom amendments
Wiitien ofi balances
Changes due lo changes in
exchange rales

Total balance as &t period
end

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tatal

Indivichzally Toial indivicualy Tokal
1,485,572,507 - 182,366,276 - 138,175,050  1,786,113,833
125,760,956 11,602,908 . 12,430,340 150,002,204
{121,850,885) {18,842,035) . {14,470,488)  (155,963,406)
31,223,016 - {62,788,822) . {1.162,094) (32,727,900)
{20,374,290) {3,324,685) - {1,043,805) (24,742,760)
(5.394,716) - (10,773,744) - 3,287,328 (12,881,132
57,050,396 . 20,332,335 . 23,489.747 100,872,478
1.551,986.984 . 97,972,253 - 160,715,080 1.810,674,317

The following is the movement on the provision of impaiment loss - Consolidated as at period

end:

Balance - beginning of the
period
Impairment loss on the new
fachities during the year
Reversed lrom impairment
loss over setlled balances
(Repaid/ Daracognized)
Transferrad lo stage 1
Transferred to stage 2
Transterred lo stage 3
Impact on provision — as at
period end - dus lo
reclassilicalion  between
tha 3 stages during the
period
Changes
amendments
Written off balances
Changes due to changes
in exchange rates
Balance — End of the
Period

from

RAe-allocation:

Provisions an an individual
basis

Provisions on a collective
basis

Total balance as at period
end

Medium and Government
Real Eslale small and Public
Individuals Loans Coiposala businesses sector Total
JD JO JO JO JD JO
10,783,596 14,196,098 65,579,890 5,215,479 9,470 95,775,064
1,498,623 202,532 5,676,924 888,848 - 8,266,928
(2,028,220) (288,895) {7,355,385) {324,B88) (9,470) {10,006,855)
(684,904} {1.864,745) {2,634,628) {332,184) - {5,516,462)
{329,493) {490,039) (1,753,541) (507,739) - {3,080,811)
(837,978) (909,652) 2,507,391 (493,630) - 266,130
2,438,385 3,858,448 3,678,258 1,310,841 - 11,285,933
10.630.540 14,703,747 65,698,910 5,756,730 - 96,969.928
10,830,540 14,703,747 65,688,910 5,756,730 . 96,989,928
10,830,540 14,703,747 65,698,910 5.756,730 - 96,989,928
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JORDAN KUWAIT BANK

(A PuBLIC LIMITED SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 30 JUNE 2018

Interest in Suspense

The movement on interest in suspense during the pericd / year is as fallows:

Companies
Governmant
FReal Estate Small and and Public
Individuals Loans Large Medium seclor Tolal
JD JD JD JD JD JD

For the six months

Ended June 30, 2018
Balance - beginning ol the

perlod 590,086 1.846.443 9,583,631 380,479 - 12,401,539
Add: Interes! suspended

during tha period 845,905 625.885 1,927,212 134,472 - 3,333,474
Less: Interest reversed to

income 275453 61,355 106,504 35,069 - 478,381
Interast In suspense

written-off - - - - - -
Balance - End of the

Perlod 861.438 2,410,973 11,404,339 479,882 - 15,256,632

Companies
Government
Real Estate Small and and Public
Individuals Loans Large Medium seclor Total
JD JD JD JD Jo JD

For the perlod Ended

Decamber 31, 2017
Balance — beginning of the

period 643,062 1,819,453 11,537,660 414,911 14,415,086
Add: Inlerast suspended

during the pericd 142177 195,301 2,570,648 347,776 - 3,255,902
Lass: Interest roversed lo

Income 80,622 168,311 668,788 382,208 - 1,299,829
Interest in suspense

wrilten-off 113,631 - 3,158 - - 116,789
Non performing credit of-
consolidated statement of
financial posHions . - 3,852,731 - 3,852,731
Balance - End of the

Period 590,986 1.846.443 9,583,631 380.475 - 12,401,539

The bank adopts a policy for suspending interast off the consolidated statement of financial
position for credil facilities that are outstanding before the court of law. Suspended interest on
non-performing credit facilities off the consolidated statement of financial position, amounted to
JD 10,147,842 for the six monlhs ended June 30, 2018 {against JD 17,495,663 for the year ended

December 31, 2017.



JORDAN KUWAIT BANK

(A PuBLIC LIMITED SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 30 JUNE 2018

Direct credit facilities are distributed according to economic seclor as follows (Unaudited):

Sum
June 30,
Inside ihe Kingdom  Quiside the kingdom 2018 December 31, 2017
JD JD
Financial 18,282,584 5,886,092 24,158,656 18,044,937
Indusirial and mining 388,299,467 41,375,255 429,674,722 469,819,050
Trade 261,383,115 5,982,513 267,365,628 202,393,814
Real estates 234,429,980 1,430,458 235,560,438 216,766,216
Services 195,543,571 99,284,348 294,827,919 357,913,040
Agricullure 29,898,328 - 28,898,328 30,806,779
Shares 18,632,731 790,390 19,423,121 6,589,624
Individuals 130,558,256 - 130,558,258 145,121,574
Goevarnmeni and Public
seclors 104,987,097 B 104,987,087 114,811,877
Total 1.382,025.109 154,720.056 1,536.754.165 1.582.266.911

(8) FiNanCIaL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

The delails of this item are as follows:

QOuoted shares in aclive markeis
Quoted bonds In active marksts
Unquoted bands in aclive markets
Total

H I
Fixed rate
Floating rate
Total

June 30,
2018

December 31. 2017

Unaudited

Audiled

JD

JD

6,127,310
$4,488,359
6.058.000

66.673.669

57,021,450
3.524,909

60,548,359

The bank has reclassified the linancial assets at fair value through proiit or loss due to the
adoption of IFAS (9) in the amount of 66,673,669 as at January 2018 {Note 2-2).

a7



JORDAN KUWAIT BANK

{A PuBLIC LIMITED SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 30 JUNE 2018

(8} FiNANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The details ol this item are as follows:

Quoted shares in active markets

Unguoted shares in active markets

Quoted bonds in active markals

Ungueted bonds in active markets

Total

Less: provisien for impeairment of financial assets al fair value through
comprehensive incoma

Total

Anatysls of bonds and treasury bills:

Fixad returns:
Variable relurns
Total

June 30,
2018 December 31, 2017
JD JD
13,876,716 8,295,860
20,621,242 20,944,851
65,767,002 -
17,085,000 -
117,349,960 20,240,711
1.956.310 -
115,391,650 29,240,711
€3,440,130 -
18,411,872 -
B2,852.002 -

The cash dividends on the above investmenls were JD 1,300,475 for the six monihs ended
30 June 2018 {(compared to JD 853,256 for the six months ended 30 June 2017).

Part of the financial assets at fair value through statement ol income and financial assets at
amorized cost were transferred to financial assets at fair value through stalement ol
comprehensive income as a result of the application of the final version of IFRS 9 (note 2.2). The
fair value of the transferred assels is JO 97,510,640 as at 1 January 2018
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JORDAN KUWAIT BaNK

{A PuBLIC LIMITED SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As AT 30 JUNE 2018

{10) FiNANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTIZED COST

The details of this item are as follows:

ted Financial A :
Companies' bonds and debentures

Total Quoted Financial Assats

Unguoted Financial Assels:
Bonds and treasury bilis

Companles' bonds and debaniures
Total Unquoted Financlal Assels
Tolal

Lass: pravision lor impalrment of financial assets at fair vatue

Total

nd 8il nalysi
Fixed rate
Floating rata
Totat

June 30,
2018 December 31, 2017
Unaudited Audited
JD JD
- 15.847.190
- 15,847,190
335,646,022 361,845,731
1,416,000 17,408,000
337.064.022 379,253,731
337,064,022 395,100,921
24,981 -
337,039.041 385,100,921
337,039,041 379,200,921
- 15,900,000
337,039,041 395,100,921

A portion of financial assets were reclassified at amortized cost of 30,836,073 JD as at 1 January
2018 as a result of the application of the final version of IFRS 9 (note 2.2).



JORDAN KUWAIT BANK

{A PuBLIC LIMITED SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 30 JUNE 2018

Movement on investmenl collectively as at period end (Unaudiled):

Stage 1 Slage 2 Stage 3
Individually Incividuatty individually Total
Item:
Fair value as a! tha beginning of the period / year 61,048,583 - 13,231,800 74,280,383
New Invesimants during the period - - 5 -
Accrued Investiments (Repald/ Derecognized) (4,963,000) - - (4,953,000)
Changes In fair valua - -
Transferred to stage 1 {427,845) - - {427,843)
Transferred to stage 2 - - - -
Transferred ta stage 3 - - - -
Changes {rom amendments . - - -
Written off balances & - o -
Changes due o changes in exchange rates — 0 - - -
Total balance as st perlod end 55,657,738 - 13,231,800 £8,888.538
Frovision for impairment loss collectively movement as at period end (Unaudited):
Staga 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Individuatly Individually individualty Total
Total balance as at pericd beginning 458,680 - 1,543,952 2,002,832
Loss on impairment over balances added during - - - -
the pariod
Reversed from impairment loss over seltled {23,806} - - (23,808)
balances (Repald/ Derecognized)
Transierred to stage 1 3,299 - - 3,299
Transterrad to staga 2 = - - -
Translerred to stage 3 - - 966 966
Impact on provision — as at perlod end - due lo - - - -
reclassification batween the 3 stages during the
pericd
Changes from amendmenis - - - -
Whitten off balances - - - -
Changes due {o changes in exchanga rates - - - -
Total balance as at period end 438,373 - 1,544,918 1,983.201




JORDAN KUWAIT BANK

{A PuaLIC LIMITED SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 30 JUNE 2018

11} PROPERTY. PLANT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Net of disposals to property, plant and intanglble assets far the six months ended June 30, 2018
amounied to JD 488,792 (against additions JD 4,157,404 for the six months ended 30 June 2017).

12 OTHER ASSETS

The defails of this item are as follows:

June 30,
2018 December 31, 2017
Unaudited Audlted
JD JD

Accrued Inlerast and revenue 23,970,882 14,976,084
Prepald expenses 5,089,120 2,700,257
Assals salzed by the Bank agains| dua debis - net * 147,383,260 151,099,594
Dabtors ** £08,304 663,495
Clearing checks 2,369,012 388,488
Others ** 7.767.470 10.967.857
Total 187.188.048 180,796,785

"The Central Bank of Jordan's instructions require that the Bank dispose of seized assets within
a period not exceeding two years from the slart date of seizure and to the central bank, in
exceptional cases, extending this period for a maximum ancther sequential two years.

"*Deblors and other assels include baiances relating to the subsidiary companies of JD 233,213
as of June 30, 2018 (JD 147,959 as of December 31, 2017).

The movement on assels seized by the Bank against due debts was as follows {unaudited):;

For the Six
Monlths Ended
December 31,
For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 2m7
Other Sefzed
Seized Property Assals™ Total Total
JO JD Jo JO

Balance - beginning of the period / year - net 149,644,118 1,455,476 151,098,594 136,494,967
Additions 911,665 - 911,665 28,608,940
Disposals {2.762,531) {622,922) (3,385,453} {7.078,856)
Provislon as per CBJ instructions * (1,282,373) - (1,282,373} {6.372,655)
Loss on impaiment 39.827 - 39,827 {553,002)
Balance - End of the Period / Year 146,550,706 832,554 147,383,260 151,099,554

* This item represent provision of praoperties seized by the bank based on the instruction of the
central bank of Jordan regarding the issue for which the bank started to calculate a gradual
provision for the seized assets against debts which has been owned for a period of 4 years.

** Disposals represents selling part of shares owned through the first half of the current year with
a profit of 246,146 JD.
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(13) CusTOMER DEPOSITS

The details of this item are as follows:

Current accounls and
demand deposils

Saving deposiis

Time deposiis subject
to notice

Deposils Certificates

Current accounts and
damand depaosils

Saving deposits
Time deposits subject
to nolice

Depasits Certificales

June 30, 2018
Companias
Govermment
Small and and Public

Individuals Large Medium Sector Tolat
309,427,377 93,498,020 189,961,910 26,593,778 619,481,086
161,408,728 733,483 5,926,685 718,825 168,787,721
632,734,061 198,245,609 70,428,232 87,248,912 989,656,814
56.773 - - - 56,773
1,103.626.939 293,477,112 266,316,827 114,561,516 1,777.982.394

December 31, 2017
Companies
Govemnment
Small and and Public
Individuals Large Medium Saclor Total
Unaudited Unaudiled Unaudited Unaudiled Unaudited

306,822,870 125,736,612 217,701,627 4,129,758 654,390,867
170,792,970 3,253,071 5,163,170 583,086 179,792,297
636,661,485 153,672,278 82,282,245 86,969,111 959,585,120
2.940.71 11,599,949 - - 14,540,650
1,117,218.027 294,261,910 305,147,042 91,681,955 1,80B,306,834

Govemmen and Public sector deposits amounted to JD 114,561,516 which is equivalent to 6.6%
of total deposits as of 30 June 2018 (against JD 91,681,955 which Is equivalent to 5.1% of tatal

deposits as of 31 December 2017.)

Non-interest bearing deposits amounted to JO 611,251,498 which is equivalent to 34,4% of total
deposils as of 30 June 2018 (against JD 654,390,867 which is equivalent o 36.2% as of 31

December 2017)

Restricted deposits amounted to JD 24,549,811 which is equivalent lo 1.4% of lotal deposits as
of 30 June 2018 (against JD 21,690,132 which Is equivalent to 1.2% as of 31 December 2017.

Dormant deposits amounted to JD 54,349,946 as of 30 June 2018 (against JD 43.362.849 as of

31 December 2017.)
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(14),_SunDRY PROVISIONS

The details of this itemn are as follows:

June 30,
2018 December 31, 2017
JO JD
Provision For Stalf Indemnity 10,205,943 9,854,764
Provision Far Lawsuits Against The Bank 1,228,356 1,066,365
11,434,299 10,921,129
{15) INCOME Tax
A._ _ PROVISION FOR INCOME Tax
The movement on provision for Income tax was as follows:
For the Six Months
Ended Faor the Year Endad
June 30, 2018 _December 31, 2017
Unaudited Unaudiied
JO Jo
Beginning balance for the penod / year 12,210,713 14,567,302
Income tax accrued for the period’ year 5,135,843 15,529,378
Income lax paid for the paried / year {11,519,934) {17,779,527)
Income tax paid for the period / year - {106.440)
Ending balance for the period / year 5.826.622 12,210,713

B. _INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Provision for income 1ax in the intedim consolidaled slalement of income is comprised of the

following:

Far tha Six Months Ended June 30

2018 2017
Unaudiled tnaudited
JO JD

Accrued income lax for the perlod's profits 5,135,843 7,336,506
Elfect of Deferred tax assels for the pariod 2,537,542 {626,585)
Eftect of Deferred tax liabfities for the period - -
Total 7,673,385 6,709,921
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(A PuBLIC LIMITED SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As AT 30 JuNE 2018

RECONCILIATION BETWEEN ACCOUNTING INCOME AND TAXABLE INCOME

The summary of the recanciliation betwaen accounting income and taxable income is as follows:

Accounting profit

Expenses not deduclible lor lax purposes
Nan-taxable profit

Taxable Income

Effective Income Tax Rates:

Jordan branches
Palestine branches
Cyprus branches
Subsidiary companies

C. RECONCILIATION BETWEEN ACCOUNTING INCOME AND TAXABLE INCOME

The tax status for the bank and its subsidiaries is as follows:

Faor the Six Months Ended Juna 30
2018 2017
JO JD
26,160,272 21,246,503
13,348,683 7,427,742
(7.232.342) (5.527.632)
32,276,613 23,146,613
35% 35%
20% 20%
12.5% 12.5%
24% 24%

Final Payment to
Income Tax Settlament up Income and
Retumupto End 1o End of the Sales Tax Yaars Under
Branches / Companies of the Year Year Oepartment Dispula
Accrued lax has None
Jordan Branches 2016 2016 been paid
Accrued fax has None
Palestine Branches 2016 2016 been paid
Accrued lax has Nong
Cyprus Branch 2016 216 bean paid
Accrued lax has None
Ejarah lor Finance Leasing 2016 2015 baen paid
Accrued tax has 2013
United Financlal investments Campany 2016 2014 been paid
Specialized Managerial Company lor None
Invesimenis and Financial Services None None None

In the opinion of the Management and the Tax Consuitant of the bank and subsidiaries, the
provision for income lax is sufficlent as at the condensed interim financial statements.



JORDAN KuwAIT BANK

(A PUBLIC LIMITED SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
NOTES To THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 30 JUNE 2018

(16) BORROWED FUNDS

These {unds were obtained by agreements with the Central Bank of Jordan and The Jordan
Mortgage Refinance Company for a period less than 22 years, in the purpose of using it in
financing small and medium size companies. It also includes advanced payments obtained from
the Ceniral Bank of Jordan for the period of 2 years for the purpose of using them to finance small
and medium sized companies, in addition to loans obtained from local banks for the bank's
subsidiaries and is as follows:

Numbaer of
instaftment
s and
remaining  Frequency Loan
June 30, 2018 instaliment of Interest
{Unaudited) Calings Amcunt ] instaliment rates Collateral
JOD JD
Loan Irom Central Bank of Paid over Semi
Jordan 4,800,000 3,800.000 10 yaars Annual %4.02 -
Loan from Central Bank of paid over 6 Semi
Jordan 3,000,000 2,580,000 yaars Annual %2.5 -
Loan from Central Bank of pald over Semi
Jordan 4,663,500 4,663,500 13 years Annual %A4.07 .
Loan Irom Central Bank ol paid over Semi
Jordan 1,611,086 1,611,086 22 years Annual %3.00 -
Upon
Advanced paymenis irom paid over § demand
Central Bank of Jordan 7,373,911 4,965,985 years  Monthly %1.64 Depaosiis
Upon
Advanced paymanis from paid over 1 demand
Central Bank of Jordan 549,914 549,914 yaar  Monthly %1.25 Deposits
Upon
Advanced paymenis from paid avar demand
Cenlral Bank of Jordan 5,333,353 4,865,849 10 year Monthly %2117 Deposits
Upon
Advanced paymenis from Pald over 1 demand
Central Bank of Jordan 500,000 107,146 year  Quariatly %2.25 Deposiis
Loan lrom the Jordan Paid under one instalment
Mortgage Refinance Co 20,000,000 20,000,000 during 2020 %555 -
Loan irom the Jordan Pald under ona instalment
Mortgage Relinance Co 10,000,000 10,000,000 during 2020 %46.05 -
Paid aver 36 instalments
Local bank * 5,000,000 3,923,885 from dala of utllization %6.5 -
Paid aver 36 instalments
Local bank * 5,000,000 3,262,925 Irom date of uiilization %E6.75 -
Paid over 38 instalmenis
Local bank * 5,000,000 1,893,060 from dale of utitization %6 5 .
Paid under one Instalment
Local bank © 5,000,000 1,871,916 on August 5, 2018 %E.75 -
Local bank * 5,000,000 4,482 578 Not Applicable %6.5 -
Loan from the Jordan Paid under one instalment
Martgage Refinance Co* 5,000,000 5,000,000 on August 5, 2018 %4.35
Loan from the Jordan Palid under one instalment
Morigage Refinance Co* 5,000,000 5,000,000 on May 18, 2018 %5.75
Loan from the Jordan Pald under one instalment
Mortgage Reltnance Co* 5,000,000 5,000,000 on February 4, 2020 %6 20 .
Total 97,031,764 83.577.644
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NOTES To THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As AT 30 JUNE 2018

The barrowings have been re-lent to support small to medium institulions and companies with an
average price of 6% lo continue its operations of short or long-term, as for products of financial
leasing has been granted with the an average price of 10%

December 31, 2017

Number of
instaliments
and Fraquency
remaining of Loan Interest
Clelings Amount installments _ instaliment rates Coflateral
JD JD
Loan from Ceniral Bank of Pald over 11 Semi
Jordan 4,000,000 4,000,000 years Annual %3.253 2
Loan from Central Bank of Pald aver 7 Semi
Jordan 3,000,000 2,790,000 years Annual %2.5 -
Loan from Central Bank of Paid over 14 Semi
Jordan 4,663,500 4,663,500 years Annual %3.303 -
Loan from Central Bank ol Paid over 22 Semi
Jordan 1,611,086 1,611,085 yaars Annual %3 -
Advanced paymenis [from Pald over 5 Upon
Central Bank of Jordan 6,899,643 5,287,584 years Menthly %1,732 request
Pald ovar 1
Advanced paymenis from year and 3 Ugon
Central Bank of Jordan 500,000 179,000 months Quarterly %2.25 request
Advanced payments from paid over 10 Upon
Caniral Bank of Jordan 3,663,460 3,663,460 year Monthly %1.375 request
Loan [from the Jordan Paid under one Instaiment
Morigage Refinance Co 20,000,000 20,000,000 during 2020 %5.55 -
Loan from the Jordan Paid under one Instalment
Morigage Aefinance Co 10,000,000 10,800,000 during 2020 %6.05 -
Not Not
Local Bank (shori-term)* 5,000,000 3,270,827  Applicable  Applicable %6 B
Not Not
Local Bank (shori-term)” 5,000,000 2,766,728  Applicable  Applicable %6.25 -
Paid over 36 instalments
Local Bank* 5,000,000 3,748,357 from date of utilization %6 .
Paid gver 36 Instaiments
Local Bank* 5,000,000 3,157,332 from date of utflization %6 -
loan fram the Jordan Paid under one instaiment Heal estate
Morigage Relinance Co* 5,000,000 5,000,000 on May 15, 2019 %5.55 morigage
Loan from the Jordan Paid under one Instalment Aeal estate
Morigage Refinance Co* 5,000,000 5,000,000 on August 5, 2018 %4.35 morigage
Loan from the Jordan Paid under one instaiment RAeaf estate
Morigage Refinance Co* 5.000.000 5.000.000 on August 5, 2018 %9.75 morlgage
Total 89,337,689  B0,137.973
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1 OTHER LIABILITIES

The details of this item is as tollows:

Accrued interest payable
Inward fransters

Aceounts payable *

Accrued expenses

Temporary deposits - customers

Temporary depaoslis **

Sharaholders’ dapaosits ***

Accepled and certified checks

Lock boxes depaosits

Subscriptions deposils ***

Provision for impaimmen! in Ingdirect facilities
Other Liabilities =

Total

June 30, December 31,
2018 2017
Unaudited Audiied
JD J0D
10,826,732 10,113,603
2,437,067 1,712,868
1.881,062 1,472,545
1,812,088 1,468,268
8,185,743 4,007,668
3,924,412 3,649,262
6,418,577 4,549,436
6,124,242 7.041,805
496,143 499,959
131,864 131,879
2,818,772 -
21,002,033 10.721.673
66,057,705 45,367,012

*Accounts payable and other liabilities include balances for subsidiaries in the amount of JD

2,061,539 as of June 30, 2018 (against JD 1,751,673 as ol December 31, 2017).

**This item represents temporary payments o public listed companies and others.

***This amount represents the praceeds of subscriptions o public shareholding companies under

incorporation.

(18} FINANCIAL ASSETS REVALUATION RESERVE — NET AFTER TAX

The movement on this item through the period / year is as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the period / year
Unrealized Gains- net

Unrealised (Losses)

Defarred fax liabilities

Balance at the end of the pariod / year

For the Six Months  For the Year Ended
Ended June 30, 2018 Decermber 31, 2017
Unaudited Audited
JD JD

8,135,930 6,133,272
(2,731,746) 2,634,144
(192,477) 222,022

283,828 {853,508)
5,475,635 8,135,930
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{19) RETAINED EARNINGS

The movement on this item through the period / year is as follows:

For the SixMonths  For the Year Ended
Ended June 30, 2018 _December 31, 2017

Unaudited Audlied
JO Jo
Balance at the beginning of tha pariod / yaar 99,275,774 105,999,129
The impact of adopling IFRS (8) {41.210.085) -
Balance- at the beginning of the period 58,065,689 105,999,129
Prafit for the year - 26,955,783
Gains (lesses) from financial assets through comprahensive income 182,477 {222,022)
Transterred from (to) reserves” 14,288,875 (13,457,126)
Dividends Pald - {(Nole 32) (20.000.000) (20,000,000}
Balance at the end of the period / year 52,547,041 99.275,774

Included in retained eamings Is an amount of JD 26,027,267 as of 30 June 2018 restricted
according to the Central Bank of Jordan's instruclions against deferred tax assets against
JD 11,299,456 as of 31 December 2017.

Relained eamings include an amount of D 0 as of 30 June 2018 against /D 3,920,703 as of 31
December 2017, which represents the effect of early adaption of IFRs (9). These amounis are
restricted amounts and cannot be utilized unless realized through sale as instructed by the Jordan
securities commission,

Use of the negalive evaluation of the financial assets reserve Is restricted according lo the
regulations of the Jordan's securities commission and the Central Bank of Jordan.

*According to the regulations of Central Bank of Jordan (13/2018) the balance of general banking
reserve amounting 14,288,875 as al 31 December 2017 have been transferred to retained
eamings 1o clear the effect of IFRS (9) implementation, and the amounts is restricted for use atier
clearing.

48



JORDAN KUWAIT BANK

(A PuBLIC LIMITED SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
NOTES To THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As AT 30 JUNE 2018

20) INTEREST INCOME

The details of this item is as follows:

Direct Credit Facllities:
Indlvidual {Retall):
Overdrafls

Loans and discounted bills
Credit cards

Real Estate loans

Companies:

Corporate

Cverdrafts

Loans and discounied bills

Madium and Small Companles

Qverdralls

Loans and discounted bills

Government and public sector

Balances at Central Bank

Balances and depasits at banks and financial institutions
Financial assets at amartized cost

Financlal assets at fair value through income & loss

Financlal assets at fair value through comprehensive income

Total

(21} INTEREST EXPENSE

The details of this item is as follows:

Deposits at banks and financial Institutions
Customers deposits;

Current and demand deposits

Saving deposits

Tima and notice accounts

Certificates of deposits

Cash margins

Borrowed funds

Depaosiis guarantse lees

Total

43

For the Six Months Ended June 30
2018 2017
Unaudited Audited
JD JD
164,197 1,548
3,803,793 2,932,521
978,471 835,899
9,590,763 7,300,318
5,531,878 6,656,507
27,736,544 26,054,482
1,037,670 1,014,142
3,066,919 2,876,548
4,519,330 5,028,748
B8B,643 41,324
4,032,995 2,580,140
7.950,711 9,272,596
- 2,053,680
2.027.976 g
71,329,891 66,649,464
Far the Six Monihs Ended June 30
2018 2017
Unaudited Audited
JD J0
3,968,847 3,731,146
373,351 130,892
460,642 427,037
17,791,605 11,428,029
49,905 16,581
1,070,816 779774
1,152,203 1,115,807
1,556.093 1.514,535
26,423,262 19,141.911
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 30 JUNE 2018

{22) OTHER INCOME

The detaiis of this item is as follows:

Rental of lock box

Slamps Incoma

Credit cards income

Recavery of debis previously wrliten-olf
Telecommunication income

Translers income

Shares trading revenua- subsldiary company
Galn on sale ot seized assals
Dividends on gain of selzed stocks
Others

Totat

(23) OTHER EXPENSES

The delalls of this item is as follows:

Rent

Stationary

Advarlisement

Subscriptions
Telecommunication fees
Maintenance

Insurance expenses

Legal expenses

Waler, heating and electricity expenses
Tax and stamp feas
Prolessional Fees

Card services expenses
Transporiation expenses
Correspandents services fees
Securlty {eas

Donalions and social fees
Hospitatity

Provision on assels seized by the bank againsi due debls

Loss on sale of selzed assets
Management leas

Others

Total

For the Six Months Ended June 30
2018 2017
Unaudited Audited
JO J0
86,513 83,620
31,708 28,218
3,305,841 2,659,507
558,890 157,941
181,600 188,394
773,550 680,987
362,391 100,047
87,505 129,981
246,146 -
1,723,346 1,334,453
7,357,490 5,363,148

For the Six Months Ended Juna 30

2018 2017
Unaudiled Audited

Jo JD
1,468,985 1,421,531
409,180 336,518
663,608 618,239
240,869 arm
641,058 719,870
1,729,986 1,220,323
503,684 452,310
36,005 48,580
754,233 751,840
532,361 525,632
76,542 134,867
1,976,038 1,678,315
80,732 90,277
143,180 129,358
138,085 13,691
606,734 476,596
40,036 60,995
1,242,546 2,480,388
656,807 355,623
452,342 246,732
10.040.423 1,706,580
22,433.454 13,850,887




JORDAN KUWAIT BANK

(A PUBLIC LIMITED SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 30 JUNE 2018

(24) Gans (L0SSES) FROM FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFTT & LOSS

The details of this item is as lollows:

Realized Unrealized
For the Six Month Ended June 30, 2018 (fosses) {losses) Dividends Incama Tolat
JD JD JD JD
Companies shares - - - L
Corporate bonds and debentures - - - -
Total 5 - = -
Realized Unrealized
For the Six Manth Ended June 30. 2017 {losses) {losses) Dividends Income Total
J0 JD JO JD
Companles shares - 183,979 227,516 411,495
Compoerate bonds and debeniures 191,459 911,362 - 1,102,821
Total 181,459 1,085,341 227,516 1.514.316

25 EARNINGS PER SHARE FOR THE PERIOD ATTRIBUTABLE TO BANK'S SHAREHOLDER

The details of this item is as follows:

For the Six Months Ended Jurie 30
2018 2017
Linaudited Audited
JO JD
Income for the period attributad to the Bank’s shareholders 18.486.887 14,536.583
Income for the period from continues operalion 19.104.101 16,149,883
income for the pariod Jrom discontinued operations {817.214) (1,613.218)
Share Shara
Woeighted averaga number o! shares 100.000.000 106,000,000
JD/ Share JD/ Share
Eamings per share pertains lo the Bank's Shareholders (basic and
diluted) 0.185 0.145
Earnings per share from continuing profils (basic and diluted) 0.191 0.181
Eamings per share from discontinued lossas {0.008) {0.016)

-}



JORDAN KUWAIT BANK

(A PuBLIC LIMITED SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AsS AT 30 JuNE 2018

{26) _CaAprrAL MANAGEMENT

a. Description of Capital

Capltal is classified into several types: paid capital, economic capital, and regulatory capital.
According to the Companies Law, regulatory capilal is defined as the total items determined by
the Ceniral Bank of Jordan for ragulatory purposes relating to capital adequacy as per the Central
Bank of Jordan's instructions.

b. The requirements of the regulatory parties concerning capilal and the manner
in which they are met.

Instructions of the Centiral Bank require that paid-up capital be not less than JD 100 million and
shareholders’ equity-to-assels ratio be not less than 6%. Moreover, the Central Bank's
instructions require that the ratio of regulatory capital to assets weighted by risks and market risks
{capilal adequacy ratio) be not less than 12%, which is considered by the Bank.

Tha Bank complies with Article (62) of the Banks Law, which requires the Bank to appropriate
10% of its annual net prolits in the Kingdom and conlinue to do so uniil the reserve equals the
Bank's paid-up capital. This meets the requirements of the statutory reserve prescribed by the
Companies Law,

The Bank complies with Article {41) of the Banks Law, which requires adherence to the limits set
by the Central Bank of Jordan relfating to the following:

1. The percentage of risks relating to its assets and assets weighted by risks, elements of
capital, reserves, and contra accounts.

2, Ratio of lotal loans to regulatory capital the Bank is allowed to grant to one person, his
allies, or to related stakeholdess.

3. Ratio of total loans granted to the major ten custorners of the Bank to total loans extended
by the Bank.

C. Method of Achieving Capital Management Goals.

The Bank considers the compatibility of the size of its capital with the size, nature, and complexity
of the risk the Bank is exposed to in a manner that does not contradict the prevailing regulalions
and instructions. This is reflected in its sirategic plans and annual budgets. To be more
conservative in hedging against surrounding conditions and economic cycles, the Board of
Direclors decided, within the Bank's strategy, that capital adequacy ratio be not less than 14%.

When entering into investments, the impact on capital adequacy ratio is considered. Moreover,
capital and its adequacy are monitored periodically as capital adequacy ratio is monilored at the
Group level and the individua! Bank every quarter. Furthermore, capital adequacy Is reviewad by
internal audit,

No dividends are paid to shareholders out of the regulatory capital if such payment leads to
in adherence to the minimum capital requirement. The Bank concentrates on the Internal
generalion of capital, and ean resort to public subscriptions to meet expansionary needs and
tuture plans, or the requirements of the regulatory bodles according to specific studies.
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Capital Adequacy

On November 31, 2016, the Ceniral Bank of Jordan issued insiructions relating to capital
adequacy according to Basel lil. Basel Il has been cancelled according to the Central Bank’s

orders.

The Bank manages capital to ensure continuity of its aperations and achieve the highest possible
relumn on owners' equity, consisting of capilal, as defined by Basel lll Convention, as shown in

the following table:

Primary capital for ordinary shareholders (CET 1)

Reguiatory adjusiments {dedicalion from the primary cagital for crdinary
shareholders)

Secondary Capital

Regulatory adjustments (deductions from secondary capital)

Raegulatory capital

Assels Weighted by Risks

Primary capial Adequacy Ralio (CET 1)
Ratlo of first tranche of the capial
Regulatory capital adequacy ratio

June 30,
2018 December 31, 2017
Unaudited Audiled
JD JD
412,724 434,122
{38,048) {21,491)
10,655 14,289
{5,401} {4.248)
379,830 421,672
2,318,000 2,304,735
D.1616 0.1786
0.1616 0.1786
0.1639 0.1829

*Primary capital has been calculated nel of investments in banks and the financial subsidiary

company.



JORDAN KUWAIT BANK

{A PuBL!C LIMITED SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As AT 30 JUNE 2018

27 CASH AND H EQUIVALENT

The details of this item is as follows:

Juna 30
2018 2017
Unaudited Audiled
Jo JD
Balances at central banks due within three monihs 204,670,943 286,146,552
Add: Balances at banks and financial institutions due within threa 291,617,738 225,739,571
manths
Loss: Banks and financlal institulions depasits due within three maonlihs 257,418,937 320,881,187
Restricted balances- (Nole 5) 708,000 2,558,072
Tolai 238,360,744 168,466,864
(28) INFORMATION ON THE BANK'S ACTIVITIES
1- BANK ACTIVITIES INFORMATION

The Bank is organized, for managerial purpases, into four major sectors. These seclors are
measured according to reports used by the Chisf Exacutive Officer and key decision makers at
the Bank, Moreover, the Bank owns three subsidiaries: the financial brokerage, linance leasing
and consuitation services seclors as of the consolidated financial statements date:

Individual accounts: This Hem includes following up on individual customer's deposits,
and granting them cradit facilities, credit cards, and other services.

Comorate accounts: This item includes following up on deposits, credit facilities, and
other banking services related to corporate customers.

Treasury: This item includes providing dealing services and managing the Bank's funds.

Others: This industry includes the aclivities which do not meet the definition of the
Bank’s business aclivities mentioned above.

Financial brokesage services: This item includes practicing most of the brokerage and
financial eonsultation services.

Finance leasing services: This item includes leasing services and real estate
development projects.

Caonsulting and Issuance Services: This item includes providing financial consultation
and issittance management services,
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JORDAN KuwaIT BANK

(A PuBLIC LIMITED SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As AT 30 JUNE 2018

2- INFORMATION ON GEOGRAPHICAL ALLOCATION

The following table represents information on the Bank's sectors according to activities:

This sector represents the geographical distribution of the Bank's operations. The Bank
performs its operations, which represent local operations, mainly in the Hashemite Kingdom of
Jordan. Moreover, the Bank conducts inlemational operations through its branches in Cyprus

and Palestine.

The {oliowing are the Bank's revenue, assels, and capital expenditures according to geographic

allocation:
Inside Kingdom Qutside Kingdom ____ Total
For the Period Ended June 30,  For the Pericd Ended June 30,  For the Period Ended June 30,
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 217
Unaudiled Unaudiled Unauditad Ynaudited Unaudited Unaudited
JO JO JO JD JD JD
Gross income lor
the pailod—(b) 54,281,044 51,283,790 7,044,744 8,810,144 61,326,668 61,583,640
Capital
Expenditures 489,792 2,651,947 - 188,275 489,792 2,840,253
June 30, December 31, June 30, December 31, Juna 30, December 31,
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
JD JO JD JD JD JD
Total assats 2,254,400,256 2,352,876,560 580,891,168 479,330,466 2,835391,424 2,832,207,026
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JORDAN KUWAF BANK

{A PuBLIC LIMITED SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As aT 30 JunE 2018

B. Salaries and Bonuses of the Executive Management

The Salaries of Executive management for the Bank and the subsidiary companies amounted lo
JD 1,687,625 tor the six months ended June 30, 2018.

{30) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Credit commitments and conlingencies:

June 30 December 31
2018 2017
JD JD

Letters of credil 76,825,736 £5,101,415
Letters of accaplances 48,123,085 24,319,531
Letters of guaraniee;

Paymenis 114,481,763 122,557,161
Performance bonds 87,014,702 09,395,848
QOther 32,285,486 29,883,311
Unutiifzed credit lacililes celiings 202,769,454 158,542,008
Total 581.500,226 500,799,294

Movement on indirect credit facililies in total as at period end (unaudited):

Stage 1 ____Siage2
Tota Indnidual Total Individual Slage 3 Tatal

Total balance as al

beginning of the

period 425,239,149 - 18,082,758 - 13,599,888 456,931,795
MNew balances
during the period B0,250,841 - 2,688,761 - 9,848 82,949,450
Matured

balances

{Matured/

Derecognized) (74.111,114) - {5.,103,354) - (1.521,100) (80,735,568)
Translerred 1o
stage 1 35,663,949 . {11,6209,855) - (990} 24,033,104
Translared (o
siage 2 {5.287.726) - {662,006) - (8.000) {5,967,732)
Transferred to
stage 3 {55.418) - {117.610) - {9.964,966) {10,137,994)
Changes from
amendmanls 13,016,421 - 5,175,073 - 177,908 18,369,402
Written ot
balances - - - - - -
Changes due to

changes in

exchange rates - . - - - -
Total balence

as st pericd

end 474,706,102 - B,442.767 - 2,292,588 485,442,457
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JORDAN KUuwAIT BANK

{A PuBLIC LIMITED SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As AT 30 JUNE 2018

Provision for impaiment loss movement on indirect credil facilities in total as at period

end {(unaudiled):

Total balance as at baginning of the period

Loss on impaiment over balances added
during the period

Loss on impalrment ovar accrued balances
Translemed 1o stage 1
Translemred o stage 2
Translerred lo stage 3

Impact on provision — as at period end —
due fo reclassification between lhe 3
stages during the period

Changes from amendments

Written off balances

Changes due fo changes in exchange

rales

Total balance as at perlod end

Stage 1 Stage 2

individually  _Tolal _Indvidually 7ol Stage 3 Tolal
2,480,999 - 498,517 - 6,933,089 9,912,605
125,357 - 59,486 - 8,778 191,619
(357.162) - (171,499) - {672,402)  (1,201,063)
(1,281,279) - (274,988) - (868)  (1,557,135)
(21,091) - @977 . (8,000) {76,807)
{40) . {826) - {4521816)  (4,622,682)
4,895 - 12,342 . 115,998 175,235
993,679 - 73,315 - 1.752.778 2,819,772




JOARDAN KUwaIT BANK

{A PuBLIC LIMITED SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As AT 30 JUNE 2018

31 LAWSUITS AGAINST THE BANK

The Bank is a defendant in lawsuits amounting to JD 8,315,554 as of June 30, 2018 {(Against /D
7,680,583 December 31, 2017), and In the opinion of the Bank's management and its legal
advisor, ne Habilities shall arise against the Bank exceeding the existing provision of JD 1,228,356
as of June 30, 2018 (JD 1,066,365 as of December 31, 2017).

As of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, there were no lawsuils against the subsidiary
companies.

{32) AUTHORIZED AND PAID UP CAPITAL AND PROPOSED DIVIDENDS

The General Assembly of the Bank approved in its ordinary meeting held on 23 May 2018 the
recommendation of the Board of Directors to distribute cash dividends for the year 2017 at a rate
of 20% of the paid up capital of JD 100 million, equivalent to JD 20 million, and the same amount
in the previous year.

33 STATUTORY AND VOLUNTARY RESERVE

The bank did not deduct the statutory and voluntary reserves according to the Jordanian
Companies Law as these are Interim financial statements.
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